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THIS ADDENDUM MUST BE ACKNOWLEDGED. 

 

THIS ADDENDUM SHALL BECOME A PART OF THIS SOLICITATION. 

 
1. Page 5 indicates that all information provided to the district is public record and subject 

to inspection except any information that is recognized as confidential… If we state 
“Confidential” on our proposal or provide a statement as to which items are 
confidential/proprietary, will this be honored? Yes, if DPS receives an open records 
request we will contact the vendor allowing them to provide a redacted copy of their 
proposal. 
 

2. Is DPS accepting proposals from vendors who are unable to provide Spanish for all of 
the requested grades (K-8/3-5?) Yes, DPS is under a consent decree in which we are 
legally obligated to provide equivalent Spanish assessments for our ELL population. If 
vendors do not provide Spanish they will need to submit to DPS a plan for how their 
items/assessments will be made available in both languages i.e. providing DPS rights 
to translate/adapt content into Spanish where DPS would then own the content. 
 

3. If vendor’s proposed solution is web-based, is it required that the paper/pencil format 
provided be capable of data integration (scanning or uploading into web-based 
platform)? Yes, in addition vendor would need to provide a format for 
accommodations i.e. braille, large print, etc. 
 

4. If vendor does not meet all of the mandatory requirements, will their proposal be 
disqualified? Vendor could submit with possible solutions for meeting requirements. 
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5. Section 2.1 Mandatory Requirements, bullet 4: According to bullet 5, technology 
enhanced items (TEI) are required for all online tests. How does DPS plan to address TEI 
items for these paper/pencil versions? Would look to vendor to work to meet DPS’s 
need to provide an equivalent p/p version. They would need to be made into an MC or 
constructed response items 
 

6. Section 2.1 Mandatory Requirements, bullet 5: Does the district have a complete list of 
specific TEI types required for the interim assessment system? NO, but we are looking 
for items found on PARCC like drag and drop, highlight, hot spots… Should mirror 
PARCC as closely as possible. 

 
7. Section 2.1 Mandatory Requirements, bullet 8: Does DPS have a list of specific 

accommodations/modifications required for the interim assessment system?  Should 
mirror PARCC as closely as possible, i.e. text-to-speech capabilities 
 

8. General: Is DPS interested in computer adaptive testing as a component of its interim 
assessment system?  Not at the moment we are only asking for assessments that align 
to our S/S and are also available with an equivalent p/p version. 
 

9. Is the district looking for a point by point response to each of the criteria noted in the 
“Section II Mandatory Requirements”? Or is the district looking for one statement that 
we meet such criteria, and then a general explanation as to why in the Management 
Summary/Offering Summary Tabs? It would be helpful, but not necessary.  A 
statement that you meet the mandatory requirements and then an explanation as to 
how would suffice. Would be helpful to respond to each of the requirements so there 
is very clear understanding of what vendor can offer, this could be incorporated into 
the Offering Summary (Tab C). 
 

10. Can the district indicate the maximum number of concurrent student users the system 
should be expected to accommodate?  40k currently 

 
11. Does district currently utilize NWEA? District currently uses MAP 

 
12. Should the responses to each bulleted item within Section II – Specifications be included 

within Tab B or Tab C (taking into consideration the page limits set forth)?  The RFP 
indicates to include as much information as possible about the Additional desired 
components. If this will exceed the page limitation, vendor should provide a summary 
of what they can offer being as specific as possible. 
 

13. How many key staff/ district personnel will the vendor be training (as a Train-the-Trainer 
approach)?  ARE staff of 3-4 and 2-3 from our technology side 
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14. The RFP indicates: “If all documents relating to the contractual terms and conditions are 
not included at the time the offer is submitted, the Vendor shall be considered non-
responsive.”  

a. Does this mean that we need to provide the actual RFP documents somewhere 
within our proposal, or is this regarding any exceptions to the Terms & 
Conditions? Please refer to section II, this refers you to the information needed 
to be addressed in Tab A. 

b. Where should we include this information within our response (as far as the 
layout/format)? Section 2.1 states that these are mandatory requirements. 

 

i. Would the District prefer that vendors respond to the required and 
desired specifications in the Offering Summary, the Management 
Summary, or as an additional section? You may address the desired 
information in either section; make sure to refer us to location (i.e. 
under Management or Offering Summary). 

 

15. Can the District please clarify the difference between what information should be 
presented in the Offering Summary vs. the Management Summary? TAB B- 
Management Summary (limit 10 pages). Include a management summary which 
provides an overview of proposed services. Vendors should emphasize why their 
proposal is best suited to meet the needs of the District. (Include resumes under a Tab 
labeled- Management summary- appendix).  
TAB C- Offering Summary (limit 5 pages). Include a summary of your offering; an 

overview of services to be provided to the District.  **If you need to refer information 

back to either one of these tabs please make sure to reference which one it is in. We 

realize some of this information may overlap. Please make sure the information is 

clear and the location is clear. 

 
16. Can you say more about the level of integration required? Are you looking for a single 

sign on? Or potentially just a link from the portals to be able to access assessments 
easily?  Or are you looking for the ability to take and analyze the assessments within 
DPS's student and teacher portals?  
DPS would like to be to be able to integrate the results into the District’s Operational 
Data Store (ODS).  We would then be able to consume the data from the assessments 
into the four portals (Principal, Teacher, Parent, and Student).  We would look for 
single sign on access from the portals to the assessment platform to make the tool 
seamless for users.  
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17. Are the resumes to be included in the Management Summary- Appendix the same 
resumes to be included in Tab F? They are the same resumes.  You may include the 
resumes under Tab F with a note in the Management Summary that refers them to 
that tab. 

 

18. How will these assessments be communicated internally? As DPS assessments? Or as 
tools provided by the partner organization? DPS would provide copyright information 
specific to the vendor on all printed materials.  
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19. On the cover page, are the "reviewed by" and "approved by" signatures for DPS internal 
use or for separate individuals in the authorized representative's company? These 
signatures should be from separate individuals in the authorized representative’s 
company. 
 
 

20.  In 2015-16, how many students will be taking the Math interim assessment in grades 2-
8, and in ELA grades 3-8?  Approximately 24,875 students grades 2-8 or 20,000 grades 
3-8. 
 

21. What are the testing windows for the interim assessments?   
Interim 1: 9/28-10/9, Interim 2:  11/30-12/11, Interim 3: 2/9-2/27 

 
22. Page 15; Section 2.1; first bullet 

Please confirm that DPS will make available to the winning bidder, immediately upon 
award, the District’s current test blueprints and scope/sequence documents. The 
selected vendor will receive access to these. 

 

23. Page 17, Section 2.2, third-from-last bullet. 
Also from the 4/15 teleconference. 
Can DPS confirm that a successful bid needs to include both a platform and content? Or 
could a content-only bid also be feasible (and compliant)? If the latter is true, please 
confirm that bidders proposing only content should simply not respond to 
questions/requirements pertaining only to a platform.  A successful bid can include a 
platform, but that is NOT a requirement.  Content only bids are accepted.  If you are 
only proposing content, please state that and you can ignore the platform specific 
questions.   
 

24. Page 18; Section IV – Proposal response and formatting. 
Also from the 4/15 teleconference. 
The District seeks point-by-point bidder responses to all mandatory requirements (from 
Section 2.1) and to all additional desired components (from Section 2.2); plus responses 
to bullets in Section 2.3. Should these responses all be part of TAB B, with its 10-page 
limit? If necessary you may refer to some of this information in TAB C, please make 
sure it is clear where the information is located. 
 

25. From the 4/15 teleconference. 
Please advise how bidders are to address the issue of TEIs in the paper-pencil versions of 
tests. 
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Would look to vendor to work to meet DPS’s need to provide an equivalent p/p 
version. They would need to be made into an MC or constructed response items.   
 
 

26. From the 4/15 teleconference. 
Please further explain the consent decree in effect at DPS regarding Spanish 
assessments, and how it is recommended that bidders handle this if they do not 
currently offer their assessments in Spanish. DPS is under a consent decree in which we 
are legally obligated to provide equivalent Spanish assessments for our ELL 
population. If vendors do not provide Spanish they will need to submit to DPS a plan 
for how their items/assessments will be made available in both languages i.e. 
providing DPS rights to translate/adapt content into Spanish where DPS would then 
own the content. 
 

27. From the 4/15 teleconference.  
Please explain the relationship between this current RFP (BD1726) and the one or two 
related RFPs that preceded it (BD1717 – IMS; and was another RFP mentioned about an 
Item Bank? If so, can the District please provide access to it?). The documents have 
been posted on to the DPS Bid site. We cannot give additional information at this 
time. 
 

28.  Please confirm if we can or cannot provide assessments only for English and not 
Spanish?  
DPS is under a consent decree in which we are legally obligated to provide equivalent 
Spanish assessments for our ELL population. If vendors do not provide Spanish they 
will need to submit to DPS a plan for how their items/assessments will be made 
available in both languages i.e. providing DPS rights to translate/adapt content into 
Spanish where DPS would then own the content. 

 

29.  Please confirm if we can have access to the blueprint of your assessments? The 
selected vendor will receive access to these. 
 

30. Please confirm if you need the items to be technology enabled and yet be delivered via 
paper/pencil how do you foresee that to happen? Would look to vendor to work to 
meet DPS’s need to provide an equivalent p/p version. They would need to be made 
into an MC or constructed response items. 
 

31. Please confirm that the District is look for assessments AND an assessment platform. A 
successful bid can include a platform, but that is NOT a requirement.  Content only 
bids are accepted.   

32. Please confirm that the Vendor can respond to both or either the assessment and 
platform piece of this RFP. All bids need to include assessment content.  Having a 
platform is optional.  
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33. Given that the District would like an explanation for each item under mandatory 

requirements and desired components in Tab C (limited to 5 pages), can the District 
increase the page number limitations for this Tab? No, the page limitations will not be 
increased. 
 
 

34. Can additional information from the vendor be provided in an Appendix? Yes  
 

35. Regarding integration to the Student and Teacher portals, would this requirement be 
satisfied with a single sign-on link from the portals into the proposed application? DPS 
would like to be to be able to integrate the results into the District’s Operational Data 
Store (ODS).  We would then be able to consume the data from the assessments into 
the four portals (Principal, Teacher, Parent, and Student).  We would look for single 
sign on access from the portals to the assessment platform.   
 
 

36. Please provide the count of schools. Approximately 86 schools.  
 

37. Does the district have a preference for vendor hosting of self-hosting the software? We 
prefer vendor host or self-hosted. 
 
 

38. Will the district allow vendors to submit multiple proposals with different 
subcontractors? Please submit one proposal and have an appendix with the different 
subcontractors. 
 

39. Does the district have a specific Pricing Form and format that it desires vendors use to 
submit pricing? No, please submit whatever format your company uses as a quote. 
 
 

40. How many ARE staff is the district looking to be trained on the system functionality and 
operation? 3-4 ARE staff. 
 

41. As no Pricing Schedule or Form was provided with this RFP, may Offerors submit pricing 
separately on the CD/ROM or thumb drive in Word instead of Excel format? Yes 
 

42. Does DPS want the vendor to propose training for all users or just Assessment Research 
and Evaluation Staff?  We would like to see what your training options and pricing are.  
This can include in person, webinars, train the trainer, resource materials, etc.  
 


